Uldaho Law **Digital Commons** @ **Uldaho Law**

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

5-24-2010

Building Contractors v. Public Utilities Appellant's Brief Dckt. 37293

I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE
B. Course of proceedings below
C. Statement of facts
1. The Commission's changes to the Rule H Tariff
1. The Commission's changes to the Rule H Tariff
a. The Company's Application
c. The Pre-2009 Rule H Tariff Treatment of Line Extension Costs, Allowances, and Refunds
Refunds
d. The 2009 Rule H Tariff Treatment of Line Extension Costs, Allowances, and Refunds
Refunds
2. The Commission's denial of BCA's request for intervenor funding
II. ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL
III. STANDARDS OF REVIEW
IV. ARGUMENT
A. Homebuilders and Boise Water provide the applicable standards to implement Idaho's anti-rate discrimination statute
anti-rate discrimination statute
B. Order 30955 imposes unlawfully discriminatory charges as between customers inside and outside of subdivisions
and outside of subdivisions
C. Order 30955 authorizes unlawfully discriminatory charges as between new customers and existing customers
and existing customers
D. Order 30955 violates the standards established in <i>Homebuilders</i> and <i>Boise Water</i>
1. There are not substantial evidence in the record or sufficient findings to justify a difference in rates as between customers inside and outside subdivisions
difference in rates as between customers inside and outside subdivisions
2. There are not substantial evidence in the record or sufficient findings to justify a difference in rates as between new and existing customers
difference in rates as between new and existing customers
3. There are not substantial evidence in the record or sufficient findings to support the conclusion that the Rule H amendments somehow address alleged "upward pressure on rates" or make "growth pay for itself."
conclusion that the Rule H amendments somehow address alleged "upward pressure on rates" or make "growth pay for itself."
rates" or make "growth pay for itself."
4. The Rule H amendments inappropriately shift system-related generation and transmission costs to new customers
transmission costs to new customers
 E. The Commission improperly denied BCA's intervenor funding requests
contribute to the proceedings below
2. The Commission abused its discretion in finding that BCA failed to raise "issues of
concern to 'the general body of users or consumers.'"
3. The Commission abused its discretion in denying BCA's requests for intervenor
funding for BCA's efforts made prior to the Original Order
F. BCA is entitled to an award of attorney fees and costs on appeal

V.	CONCLUSION	44
	1	
	·	

APPELLANT'S BRIEF - ii

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

cases
Boise Water Corp. v. Public Utilities Comm'n, 128 Idaho 534, 916 P.2d 1259 (1996)passir
Heller v. Cenarrusa, 106 Idaho 571, 578, 682 P.2d 524, 531 (1984)41 Home Builders Associatio
of Metropolitan Denver v. Public Utilities Comm'n of State of Colorado, 720 P.2d 552 (1986)
<u> </u>
Home Builders Association of Metropolitan Denver v. Public Utilities Comm'n of State of
Colorado, 720 P.2d 552 (1986)
Idaho Fair Share v. Idaho Public Utilities Comm'n, 113 Idaho 959, 751 P.2d 107 (Idaho)18, 38
39
Idaho State Homebuilders v. Washington Water Power, 107 Idaho 415, 690 P.2d 350 (1984)
J.R. Simplot Co., Inc. v. Idaho State Tax Comm'n, 120 Idaho 849, 862, 820 P.2d 1206, 1219
(1991)
142 Idaho 685, 132 P.3d 442 (2006)
Neighbors for a Healthy Gold Fork v. Valley County, 145 Idaho 121, 138, 176 P.3d 126, 143
(2007)
Owner-Operator Independent Drivers Ass'n, Inc. v. Idaho Public Utilities Comm'n, 125 Idaho
401, 871 P.2d 818 (1994) 43 Washington Water Power v. IPUC, 101 Idaho 567, 617 P.2d 124
(1980)
Statutes
Idaho Code § 61-315passir
Idaho Code § 61-617A passir
Idaho Code Section 12-117
Idaho Code Section 61-301
Idaho Code Section 61-301
IDAPA 31.01.01.164
IDAPA 51.01.01.104
Rules
I.A.R. 404
Idaho Appellate Rules 40 and 414
IDAPA 31.01.01.07114
IDAPA 31.01.01.161-165

I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the case

Appellant Building Contractors Association of Southwestern Idaho ("BCA") seeks review of the Idaho Public Utilities Commission ("Commission") Order No. 30955 ("Order 30955") approving certain unlawfully discriminatory revisions to Idaho Power Company's ("Idaho Power" or "Company") Rule H line extension tariff ("2009 Rule H Tariff") in case number IPC-E-08-22. Order 30955 approved revisions to the Rule H tariff that unlawfully discriminate in two ways. First, it authorizes Idaho Power to provide new customers a lesser level of investment than it provided existing customers, thereby causing new customers to subsidize other customers' rates. Second, it authorizes Idaho Power to invest less to extend service to new customers residing inside subdivisions than it invests in new customers outside of subdivisions by forcing inside-subdivision customers to share the benefit of a \$1,780 Company investment in facilities that each outside-subdivision customer gets the full benefit of. The reduced Company investment results in additional costs imposed on all new customers that are not attributable to them and that existing customers were not and are not subject to. These additional costs are not reasonable or justified on this record.

In this regard, the 2009 Rule H Tariff is inconsistent with the principles concerning rate discrimination in Idaho Code § 61-315 and set out by the Idaho Supreme Court in *Idaho State Homebuilders v. Washington Water Power*, 107 Idaho 415, 690 P.2d 350 (1984) ("Homebuilders"), and Boise Water Corp. v. Public Utilities Comm'n, 128 Idaho 534, 916 P.2d 1259 (1996) ("Boise Water"). In these cases, the Idaho Supreme Court found unlawful

discrimination between customers of the same class under I.C. § 61-315 where they were charged different rates without justification.

Order 30955 also is inconsistent with the Commission's previous determination in a case involving the Rule H tariff (the "1995 Case"). In that case, the Commission determined that "new customers are entitled to have the Company provide a level of investment equal to that made to serve existing customers in the same class." R. Vol. IV, p. 639 (emphasis added). Here, however, without any supporting reasoning or justification, the Commission has altered the tariff's methodology, which previously was structured specifically to ensure that "new customers are treated the same as existing customers in terms of the rates they pay." Tr. p. 292, LL. 8-16; Ex. 206. The 2009 Rule H Tariff now requires new customers to pay a greater portion of costs to connect to Idaho Power's system than existing customers paid, and requires new customers within residential subdivisions to pay an even greater portion.

The basic premise for Idaho Power's 2009 Rule H tariff amendments was to make "growth pay for itself" and to reduce an alleged source of "upward pressure on rates." The record, however, lacks any evidence or findings by the Commission to support the assertion that growth is not paying for itself, that new customers (rather than inflation and the cost of new generation and transmission needed to serve all customers) are creating upward pressure on rates, or that the 2009 changes to Rule H appropriately remedy these alleged evils if they do exist.

Likewise, Order 30955 lacks findings or conclusions regarding the extent to which the approved

¹ The 1995 Case was Commission case no. IPC-E-95-18, which concluded with the Commission's 1997 Order No. 26780 ("1995 Case Order"), a copy of which is included in the record on appeal at R. Vol. IV, pp. 626-45.

changes affect overall Company rates or whether the changes actually accomplish the asserted goal of making growth cover its costs.

BCA raised these points in the proceedings below, and provided substantial evidence and argument showing the true source of increasing costs is inflation, generation, and transmission and that the Rule H changes would result in unlawful discrimination. But Order 30955 gives barely a nod to BCA's arguments and evidence. Instead, asserting only that conditions are different today and that the standards of *Homebuilders* do not apply to non-recurring costs for line extensions to serve new customers, Order 30955 dismisses its own and this Court's relevant precedent. Order 30955 fails to even mention this Court's *Boise Water* decision. In short, Order 30955 utterly fails to grapple with the applicable factors and standards relevant to its decision.

This appeal also challenges the Commission's decision to deny BCA intervenor funding pursuant to Idaho Code § 61-617A and the Commission's Rules of Procedure, IDAPA 31.01.01.161-165, on the Commission's asserted grounds that BCA did not materially contribute to the Commission's decision, did not address issues of concern to the general body of users or consumers, and did not timely file its intervenor funding request.

B. Course of proceedings below

On October 30, 2008, Idaho Power applied to modify its Rule H tariff. R. Vol. I, pp. 1-55 ("Application"). On January 21, 2009, the Commission issued notice that the Application would be processed under Modified Procedure and established a schedule for parties to file comments concerning the Application with the Commission. R. Vol. I, pp. 129-132. The

Commission deferred deciding whether a hearing was necessary until it reviewed the parties' comments. *Id.*

On April 17, 2009, BCA filed its comments, together with the pre-filed Direct Testimony of Dr. Richard Slaughter. R. Vol. II, pp 204-209; 210-251. Dr. Slaughter, an expert economist, testified about the divergence of the Company's proposal from the standard established in the 1995 Case, included evidence in rebuttal of the Company's assertion that growth was the cause of increased distribution costs, described the adverse economic effects of the tariff revisions, and offered an updated method for computing appropriate allowances and administering vested interest refunds. *Id.*²

On May 1, 2009, BCA also filed its response to the comments submitted by the Commission Staff. R. Vol. II, pp. 253-261.

On July 1, 2009, based on the parties' comments and without holding a hearing, the Commission issued Order No. 30853 partially approving the Application. R. Vol. II, pp. 313-26 ("Original Order"). Among other things, the Original Order significantly altered Rule H's structure by eliminating the previous \$800 per developed lot/new customer refund and providing for a flat \$1,780 allowance for each transformer installed inside a subdivision, and a \$1,780 allowance for each customer located outside a subdivision. *Id.* at 10-12.

On July 13, 2009, BCA filed its Request for Consideration and Granting of Late-Filed Request for Intervenor Funding pursuant to Idaho Code § 61-617A and the Commission's Rules

² The meanings of the terms "allowances" and "vested interest refunds" are discussed below. See infra n.6 and discussion in accompanying text.

of Procedure, IDAPA 31.01.01.161-165. R. Vol. II, pp. 327-40 ("First Intervenor Funding Request"). The Commission denied BCA's Intervenor Funding Request as untimely. R. Vol. III, pp. 428-30 ("First Intervenor Funding Order").

On July 22, 2009, BCA timely filed its *Petition for Reconsideration and/or in the*Alternative for Clarification and Petition for Stay of the Original Order, R. Vol. II, pp. 358-72

("Petition for Reconsideration"), as did the Ada County Highway District ("ACHD"), the City of Nampa, and the Association of Canyon County Highway Districts. R. Vol. II, pp. 341-57, 373-82.

On August 19, 2009, the Commission granted in part BCA's Petition for Reconsideration, ordered that a technical hearing be held on the issue of the amount of appropriate allowances, and established a September 11, 2009 deadline for BCA to file direct testimony with the Commission. R. Vol. III, pp. 405-10,

The technical hearing was held on October 20, 2009. At the hearing's conclusion, the Commission asked for post-hearing briefs. Tr. Vol. II, pp. 299-300. BCA and the Company filed briefs on October 27, 2009. R. Vol. III, pp. 586-96 (BCA) and 597-608 (Idaho Power).

On November 9, 2009, BCA timely filed its *Request for Intervenor Funding* in which it sought intervenor funding for its efforts during the entire proceeding (i.e. pre- and post-Original Order). R. Vol. IV, pp. 612-47 ("Second Intervenor Funding Request").

On November 30, 2009, the Commission issued Order 30955 affirming, rescinding, amending, and clarifying parts of its Original Order, and denying BCA's Second Intervenor Funding Request on grounds that BCA had not materially contributed to the proceedings, did not

raise issues of concern to the general body of rate payers, and did not timely request intervenor funding for the pre-Original Order portion of the proceeding. R. Vol. IV, pp. 648-78.

On January 8, 2010, BCA and ACHD timely appealed to this Court challenging the Commission's decisions. R. Vol. IV, pp. 679-83 (ACHD); 684-90 (BCA). The appeals were consolidated by this Court for purposes of the Agency's Record only. R. Vol. IV, pp. 699-700.

C. Statement of facts

This statement of facts is organized in two main subsections: BCA first summarizes the facts regarding the Commission's approved changes to the Rule H Tariff; and, second, BCA summarizes the facts regarding the Commission's denial of BCA's intervenor funding request.

1. The Commission's changes to the Rule H Tariff

a. The Company's Application

Idaho Power applied for approval of certain amendments to its Rule H tariff (sometimes referred to as a "Line Extension" tariff). R. Vol. I, pp. 1-55. This tariff governs Idaho Power's charges for "requests for electric service . . . that require the installation, alteration, relocation, removal, or attachment of Company-owned distribution facilities." R. Vol. I, p. 11. Specifically, Idaho Power sought to "reorganize the tariff sections, add or revise definitions, update charges and allowances, modify refund provisions, and delete the Line Installation Agreements section." R. Vol. I, p. 4. BCA's primary concerns in the proceedings below and on appeal are the changes to line extension charges, allowances, and refund provisions ultimately approved by Order 30955.

³ "Distribution" facilities include the power lines serving local areas and the individual customer premises. They are distinguished from "generation" or "transmission" facilities, as discussed further below.

Idaho Power's premise for the tariff revisions was that "reducing allowances and refunds will relieve one area of upward pressure on rates and will take a step toward growth paying for itself." Tr. Vol. I, p. 61. The Application explained its intent to "defer rate increases by proposing Rule H revisions to update line extension charges and allowances, thereby shifting more of the cost burden for new service attachments and distribution line installations or alterations from general ratepayers to new customers requesting construction for these services." R. Vol. I, p. 3, ¶ 3. Idaho Power's main witness, Gregory Said, testified that "the only thing that's being addressed here is the <u>level of investment</u> that the Company should be making on behalf of not current customers but future customers to connect them and allow them to receive the <u>same residential service rates</u> that all other residential customers receive." TR. Vol. II, pp. 125-26.

b. Line Installation Charges

Ostensibly, "[l]ine installation charges offset the actual per-customer cost of physically connecting to Idaho Power's distribution system" R. Vol. III, p. 599 (Idaho Power's Post-Hearing Brief). It is well-settled, and BCA does not contest, that Idaho Power can charge new customers for the new service attachments and distribution line installations attributable to them. In the 1995 Case, the Commission found that such charges to new customers were permissible because, "[i]n the case of distribution plant, it is easy to identify the purpose for its construction," R. Vol. IV, p. 639; that is, "line extension charges are imposed only on those

⁴ As explained below, BCA takes issue with the <u>level of investment</u> that Order 30955 now allows Idaho Power to make in new customers, not necessarily the cost above an appropriate Company investment imposed on new customers to connect to the system. These are related, but different, concepts.

customers who will be served by the related facilities" and "[t]hose facilities will provide service only to those customers who paid for them." R. Vol. IV, pp. 635-36. Thus, distribution plant costs can be contrasted with "transmission, substation and generation costs [which] are viewed as system-related rather than customer-specific," and for which Idaho Power recoups all its costs through its power rates paid by all customers. *Id*.

c. The Pre-2009 Rule H Tariff Treatment of Line Extension Costs, Allowances, and Refunds

Prior to Order 30955, the Rule H tariff required Idaho Power to invest in new customer distribution facilities at a level "equal to that made to serve existing customers in the same class," R. Vol. IV, p. 639 (1995 Case Order), and required new customers to pay those line extension costs in excess of the portion that Idaho Power was required to invest. Idaho Power's level of investment in new customer distribution approximated its "embedded cost" (also sometimes referred to as "embedded investment"). ⁵ *Id*.

The Rule H tariff approved in the 1995 Case authorized Idaho Power to invest in new customer distribution facilities through a system of "allowances" and "refunds." An "allowance"—sometimes called a "Company-funded allowance"—represents Idaho Power's investment, rather than the new customer's investment, in new customer distribution facilities that the Company is authorized to recoup through electric rates paid by all customers. R. Vol. I, p. 168 (IPUC Staff Comments); see also R. Vol. I, p. 26 (definition of "Line Installation"

⁵ "Embedded cost represents the Company's current 'level of investment made to serve existing customers,' and . . . approximates the Company's per customer level of investment in distribution plant that it can recover through existing rates." R. Vol. III, pp. 442 LL. 18-23 (Slaughter testimony); Tr. Vol. II, p. 232, L. 21 – p. 233, L. 6. See also R. Vol. I, pp. 169-70 (Commission Staff's discussion of embedded investment).

Allowance" in proposed version of 2009 Rule H Tariff included with Application). The "refund" component of the Rule H tariff came into play when a subdivision developer (who, rather than receiving an up-front Company-funded allowance, was required to pay the costs of new distribution facilities needed for a subdivision) requested a refund from Idaho Power for each subdivision customer that connected within five years of the new distribution facilities' completion. R. Vol. IV, p. 641 (1995 Case Order). This structure of up-front allowances and refunds was intended to ensure that Idaho Power provided new customers "a level of investment equal to that made to serve existing customers in the same class," R. Vol. IV, p. 639 (1995 Case Order). And, as Commission Staff observed in the instant case, the refund component of the structure "puts the risk of development on the subdivision developer rather than on Idaho Power's ratepayers." R. Vol. I, p. 172 (IPUC Staff Comments).

The 1995 Case, in which the Commission approved this system of allowances and refunds, saw Idaho Power seeking to eliminate allowances and refunds and require a new customer to pay the entire cost of line extensions. At that time, line extensions were paid by the new residential customer or developer, and the Company later refunded up to \$1,200 per customer when he or she connected to the system. R. Vol. IV, pp. 628-629. Similar to this case, BCA then opposed the elimination of the refunds because, among other things, it would require new customers to pay the entire cost of the new line extension *plus* pay in their general rates an

⁶ The Rule H Tariff also provides for a "vested interest refund" to be paid to an applicant for new service who has paid to the Company line installation charges for extension of distribution facilities where additional applicants later attach to that section of distribution facilities. R. Vol. I, p. 21. The vested interest refund provisions of the tariff are not at issue in this appeal.

increment to cover the Company's investment in line extensions serving its existing customers and would have negative impacts on developers. *Id.*, at p. 631. Ultimately, The Company modified its proposal and urged the Commission to approve an overall allowance based on the cost of terminal facilities and up to a \$1,300 per new customer refund. *Id.*, pp. 628-629. The Company advocated that this proposed allowance was justified because, "if an allowance or Company investment is established equal to the embedded cost of facilities already included in rates, new customers are treated the same as existing customers in terms of the rates they pay." Tr., p. 292, LL. 12-16. As the Company then urged in support of its modified allowance structure, ensuring that everyone (i.e. existing and new customers) pays the average rate base embedded in rates would "keep all customers on a level playing field." R. Vol. IV, p. 630 (Commission summary of Company's argument). The Commission agreed, stating:

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