UIdaho Law Digital Commons @ UIdaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

7-16-2010

Building Contractors v. Public Utilities Respondent's Brief Dckt. 37293

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

D. The Holdings of Homebuilders and Boise Water do not Apply to this Case

BCA argues that the Commission's Order No. 30955 "authorizes Idaho Power to charge new customers discriminatory rates and charges in violation of the anti-discrimination provisions of *Idaho Code* § 61-315 and the Idaho Supreme Court's decisions in *Homebuilders* and *Boise Water*." BCA Brief at 18. Despite BCA's arguments to the contrary, the facts of this case are completely different and this case is not controlled by *Homebuilders* and *Boise Water*.⁷ In *Homebuilders*, this Court determined that the Commission could not impose a charge on only

⁷ Idaho State Homebuilders v. Washington Water Power, 107 Idaho 415, 690 P.2d 350 (1984) and Application of Boise Water, 128 Idaho 534, 916 P.2d 1259 (1996).

new customers to recover the costs of additional generating resources to serve all or "existing" customers. 107 Idaho at 421, 690 P.2d at 356. In this case, the Commission is addressing distribution costs – not the cost of transmission or generation facilities. As the Commission made clear in Order No. 30955, it is setting new "line extension charges based on the cost of standard terminal facilities that will be used to serve only the customer who is charged." Order No. 30955, Appendix A at 22.

More importantly, the *Homebuilders* Court indicated that there is no discrimination between "new" customers and "old" customers when the Commission is setting new line extension charges. 107 Idaho at 421, 690 P.2d at 356. Specifically, the Court indicated that no discrimination is present "when a non-recurring charge [e.g., one-time line extension charge] is imposed upon new customers because the service they require demands an extension of existing distribution or communication lines and a charge is imposed to offset the cost of the utility's capital investment." *Id.* (emphasis added); Order No. 30955, Appendix A at 22-23. That is the exact situation in this case.

The Commission found that "Idaho Power's line extension charges are imposed only on those customers who will be served by the new facilities. The new facilities will provide service only to those customers who pay for them." Order No. 30955, Appendix A at 23. The line extension charge is intended to offset the amount of the utility's capital invested for each customer requesting new service. Again, setting line extension charges is the very activity mentioned by the *Homebuilders* Court as permissible and not violative of the prohibition on discriminatory rates. 107 Idaho at 421, 690 P.2d at 356. Therefore, any argument regarding "old" and "new" customers is inapplicable to the facts of this case.

In fact, BCA concedes that the Commission can authorize charges that new customers pay for their connection facilities. "It is well settled, and BCA does not contest, that Idaho Power can charge new customers for the new service attachments and distribution line installations attributable to them." BCA Brief at 7. BCA takes issue with the *amount* of the allowance, that is, the Company's "level of investment" in new customers connecting to the system. *Id.*

BCA is correct that Idaho Power's level of investment has changed. However, "the singular fact of a mere difference in the rates charged the various customers . . . is insufficient to establish unjustifiable discrimination. . . " *FMC Corp. v. Idaho PUC*, 104 Idaho 265, 277, 658 P.2d 936, 947 (1983) (internal citations omitted). The new allowances are reasonably tied to the cost of the facilities being built. Order No. 30955, Appendix A at 21-23. If the cost-causers are not required to contribute more toward the costs associated specifically with their obtaining electric service, then electric rates for all customers must be increased. *Id.*, Appendix A at 21. Such a result would not be just and reasonable.

"[T]he Commission is not under a duty to set rates for different classes of customers which are either equal or uniform provided the rates set are just and reasonable. . . ." *FMC Corp.*, 104 Idaho at 275-276, 658 P.2d at 946-947 (internal citations omitted). The question is "whether the evidence as a whole in light of the circumstances of the particular case supports the differentiation, substantially, competently and with a just and reasonable result." *Grindstone*

RESPONDENT BRIEF OF THE IDAHO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 23

Butte Mutual Canal Co. v. Idaho Public Utilities Comm'n, 102 Idaho 175, 181, 627 P.2d 804,

810 (1981).

[T]he relevant criteria [to consider when forming a basis for rate differentiation include] the quantity of the utility used, the nature of the use, the time of use, the pattern of use, the differences in the conditions of service, the costs of service, the reasonable efficiency and economy of operation and the actual differences in the situation of the consumers for the furnishing of the service. Specifically, as between classes of customers within a schedule, the criteria included contribution to peak load, costs of service on peak demand days, costs of storage and economic incentives. We find such criteria as being valid considerations for rate differentiation as between classes of service, whether those classes be as between schedules or as between customers within a schedule.

Id., 102 Idaho at 180, 627 P.2d at 809.⁸

BCA also contends the new allowance structure unlawfully discriminates between customers inside and outside a subdivision. BCA Brief at 22. On the contrary, all customers requesting service are eligible for an allowance that reflects the cost incurred by Idaho Power to serve that customer. Order No. 30955, Appendix A at 23. Customers are eligible to receive maximum allowances up to \$1,780 for single-phase services and \$3,803 for three-phase services per service attachment. *Id.*, Appendix A at 22. Developers of subdivisions are eligible to receive the same amounts for each transformer installed within a development. *Id.* The distinction between a "service attachment" for customers and a "transformer" for developers is straightforward: service conductor and meters are not installed within subdivisions until later when homes are actually constructed and customers connect to the grid. Moreover,

⁸ Although the Court's reasoning in *Grindstone Butte* provided some of the foundation for the *Homebuilders* decision, *Grindstone Butte* provides a more thorough analysis of the factors that the Commission must consider in setting rates and establishing charges.

[d]evelopers of subdivisions (businesses that do not take electric service). . . receive Company-funded allowances . . . to help offset their development costs. Here, developers are paying for and installing a portion of potential future customers' terminal facilities above the Company's investment as part of a business venture; they are not customers of Idaho Power. These allowances (Company investment) are credited directly to developers at a reduced cost that may or may not be passed on to home buyers (future rate paying customers).

Idaho Power Answer to Petitions for Reconsideration at 4, R. Vol. II at 387.

BCA notes that "in a subdivision a single transformer may serve multiple (up to ten) customers if those customers are located in sufficient proximity to each other, whereas, in the case of a single customer requesting service outside a subdivision, a transformer will only serve that one customer." BCA Brief at 22 (internal citations omitted). This is precisely why a per transformer allowance is more equitable. The result is not discriminatory, it is based entirely on the difference in costs to bring service to those customers inside a subdivision. Order No. 30955, Appendix A at 22; *Idaho Code* § 61-315. Because customers share a transformer, Idaho Power incurs lower costs to connect the customers to its system. BCA's position would provide an unlawful preference to developers by offering a more generous allowance for lots ("customers") inside a residential subdivision based on costs that will not be incurred by the developer for facilities that have not been constructed by Idaho Power. *Id.* Such a result is not just and reasonable.

BCA also opposed the Commission's elimination of an \$800 per subdivision lot refund "that accounted for (i.e., made up for) what previously was deemed an insufficient level of investment that would occur if the Company provided only an allowance for Terminal Facilities." BCA Brief at 22. The Commission reasoned that, after allowing increased

RESPONDENT BRIEF OF THE IDAHO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 25

allowances to a developer up-front, providing lot refunds would cause the allowance to exceed the cost of the facilities provided. Order No. 30853 at 12, R. Vol. II at 324. The Commission's determination was well-reasoned and based on substantial and competent evidence. *Industrial Customers*, 134 Idaho at 288, 1 P.3d at 789.

Regardless of whether construction is inside or outside a subdivision, Idaho Power's line extension tariff provides customers and developers a fixed allowance toward their required terminal facilities. Order No. 30955, Appendix A at 21. The Commission-approved allowances are based on Idaho Power's costs to install standard services and account for actual differences in the locations and services provided to customers. *Id.* This approach represents a fair, just and reasonable allocation of line extension costs. *See Grindstone Butte*, 102 Idaho at 181, 627 P.2d at 810.

E. The Denial of BCA's Intervenor Funding Requests was Based upon Sufficient Evidence and was within the Commission's Discretion

To encourage customer participation in IPUC proceedings, the Legislature authorized the Commission to award "legal fees, witness fees, and reproduction costs" to intervening parties under standards set out in *Idaho Code* § 61-617A. The Commission may order certain utilities to pay all or a portion of these fees and costs to one or more parties, not to exceed a total for all intervening parties combined of \$40,000. The narrow standards for awarding intervenor funding are set out in *Idaho Code* § 61-617A(2). The funding standards applied to BCA require that the Commission find:

(a) BCA's involvement in this case must have materially contributed to the Commission's final decision;

- (b) BCA's costs of intervention awarded are reasonable in amount;
- (c) Its costs of intervention are a significant hardship for BCA;
- (d) The recommendations of BCA differed materially from the testimony and exhibits of Commission Staff; and
- (e) BCA addressed issues of concern to the general body of ratepayers.

Idaho Code § 61-617A; IPUC Rule 165, IDAPA 31.01.01.165).⁹ Any award of intervenor funding is within the Commission's discretion. *Idaho Fair Share v. Idaho PUC*, 113 Idaho 959, 963, 751 P.2d 107, 111 (1988) (the decision of the adjudicating body in deciding attorney fees will not be overturned on appeal absent an abuse of discretion).

BCA's initial intervenor funding request was made following issuance of the Commission's initial final Order No. 30853. BCA asked for the following fees:

		<u>Hours</u>
Attorney fees	\$16,567.50	71.6
Consultant fees	\$11,462.50	65.3
Copying	<u>\$356.35</u>	
Total	\$28,386.35	

BCA Funding Request at 5, R. Vol. II at 331. The Commission denied the funding request because it was filed nearly two months after the filing deadline set by IPUC Rule 164. This rule requires "an intervenor requesting intervenor funding must apply no later than fourteen (14) days after the last evidentiary hearing in a proceeding or the deadline for submitting briefs, proposed orders, or statements of position, whichever is last." IDAPA 31.01.01.164. The Commission

⁹ Funds paid by the applicable utility to an intervenor become part of the utility's costs. Section 61-617A(5) prohibits intervenor funding to intervenors "in direct competition with a public utility involved in proceedings before the Commission." The Commission is also authorized to adopt rules to implement the statute. *Idaho Code* § 61-617A(4).

found in its final Order No. 30896 that "the 14-day deadline expired on May 15, 2009. BCA did not file its request until July 13, 2009." Order No. 30896 at 2, R. Vol. III at 429. Order No. 30896 was denoted as "A FINAL ORDER" and parties aggrieved by the Order were advised that they may seek reconsideration within 21 days pursuant to *Idaho Code* § 61-626(1). *Id.* (capitals original). BCA did not seek reconsideration of Order No. 30896.

After the reconsideration hearing, BCA filed a second request for intervenor funding. In its second request BCA again sought to recover its legal and witness expenses previously denied by the Commission in Order No. 30896. More specifically, BCA requested the \$28,386.35 originally denied, and additional attorney fees (\$23,450), witness fees (\$8,464.16), and costs (\$664.74) incurred during reconsideration for a total of \$60,965.25.¹⁰ Order No. 30955, Appendix A at 23.

BCA admitted that its initial petition was untimely, but contends that the Commission abused its discretion in denying the Contractors' initial and subsequent request for all of its costs and fees through its second petition for intervenor funding. In its order on reconsideration, the IPUC pointed out that because BCA's first request for intervenor funding was untimely, it would only consider the request as it pertained to the reconsideration phase of the case. *Id.*, Appendix A at 25. After reviewing BCA's second request, the Commission determined that the Contractors' petition did not meet all of the Section 61-617A standards for funding.¹¹ The

¹⁰ Under *Idaho Code* § 61-617A(2), intervenor funding in any proceeding shall not exceed the total of \$40,000 "for all intervening parties combined."

¹¹ The Commission found that the costs to BCA represented a hardship and that BCA's positions materially differed from the Staff's positions. Order No. 30955 at n.6, Appendix A at 26.

Commission found that BCA's participation did not materially contribute to the final decision in the case (*Idaho Code* § 61-617A(2)(a)); that BCA's advocacy did not address issues of concern to "the general body of users or consumers" (*Idaho Code* § 61-617A(2)(b)); and that BCA's costs were unreasonable because its activities were beyond the scope of reconsideration (*Idaho Code* § 61-617A(2)(b)). Order No. 30955, Appendix A at 26.

1. Denial of BCA's Initial Funding Request was Appropriate

BCA argued in its brief that the Commission abused its discretion when it again denied BCA its initial intervenor funding request. BCA asserted that the Commission decided "without explanation" to again deny the initial funding request. BCA Brief at 40. Contrary to BCA's characterization, the Commission did explain its reasoning for denying the initial funding request. In Order No. 30955, the Commission stated it was being consistent with its previous decision in final Order No. 30896. In both orders, the Commission found that BCA filed its initial funding request "nearly two months after the 14-day deadline" established by Commission Rule 164, IDAPA 31.01.01.164. Order No. 30955, Appendix A at 25.

Moreover, the Commission's initial denial in Order No. 30896 was clearly labeled as a final Order ("THIS IS A FINAL ORDER.") (capitals in original). Order No. 30896 at 2, R. Vol. III at 429. As a final order, BCA's recourse was to file a petition for reconsideration as required by *Idaho Code* § 61-626 within 21 days of the issuance of Order No. 30896, i.e., by September 24, 2009. BCA did not file a petition for reconsideration within 21 days in accordance with *Idaho Code* § 61-626(1) and Rule 331.01, IDAPA 31.01.01.331.01. Having failed to exhaust its administrative remedy by filing a petition for reconsideration pursuant to Section 61-626(1),

RESPONDENT BRIEF OF THE IDAHO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 29

BCA merely resubmitted its initial funding request at a later time. This was not and is not the appropriate procedure.

Idaho Code § 61-625 states that all "orders and decisions of the commission which have become final and conclusive shall not be attacked collaterally." The initial denial of funding was a final order. Order No. 30896 at 2, R. Vol. III at 429. As this Court has noted, the Legislature has afforded the orders of the Commission a degree of finality similar to that possessed by judgments made by a court of law. *Utah-Idaho Sugar Co. v. Intermountain Gas Co.*, 100 Idaho 368, 373, 597 P.2d 1058, 1063 (1979). "Final orders of the Commission should ordinarily be challenged either by petition to the Commission for [reconsideration] or by appeal to this Court as provided by *Idaho Code* §§ 61-626 and 61-627." *Id.* The Court recognized that a "different rule would lead to endless consideration of matters previously presented to the commission and confusion about the effectiveness of Commission orders." *Id.* at 373-74, 597 P.2d at 1063-64.

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